
CIFC OF ROSEBURG PLANNING COMMISSION

Monday, August 2, 2021 at 7:00 pm
Electronic Meeting

Public Access: Facebook Live at www.Facebook.com/Ci ofRosebur

City website at: htt s://www.cit ofrosebur .or I our- overnment/commissions/ lannin -
commission/videos

^

K
.^
Y

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL
Ron Sperry
Daniel Onchuck

Jaime Yraguen

Victoria Hawks

Christy Palmini
Shelby Osborn

Stephanie Newman

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. - June 7, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: See Information on the Reverse

PRESENTATION
A. Fair Housing Presentation - Fair Housing Council of Oregon

BUSINESS FROM STAFF

BUSINESS FROM THE COMMISSION

NEXT MEETING - September 20, 2021

ADJOURNMENT

The agenda packet is available on-line at:
htt ://www.cit ofrosebur .or / our- overnment/commissions/ lannin -commission/

The Planning Commission meetings are available to view on the City website the next day at:
htt s://www.ci ofrosebur .or I our- overnment/commissions/ lannin -commission/videos

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE
Please contact the office of the City Recorder, Roseburg City Hall, 900 SE Douglas Avenue, OR 97470(Phone
541-492-6700) at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time if you need an accommodation. TDD
users please call Oregon Telecommunications Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900.



AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION INFORMATION

The Roseburg Planning Commission welcomes and encourages participation by citizens at all meetings. To allow the
Commission to deal with business on the agenda in a timely fashion, we ask that anyone wishing to address the
Commission follow these simple guidelines:

To provide comment during virtual meetings, contact the Community Development Department by phone (541-
492-6750) or email odd cit ofrosebur . or by 4:00 . m. the da of the meetin . Please indicate at that time if ADA
accommodations are requested. Provide your name, address, phone number, whether or not you are a resident of
the City of Roseburg and which item on the agenda you wish to speak. You will then be provided with a link and
phone number to join the Commission meeting. Log or call in prior to the start of the meeting using the link or
phone number provided.

• When accessing the meeting through the ZOOM link, you will be asked to enter your email and name. After
entering your email and name, click "Join Webinar" to join the meeting as an attendee.

• When accessing the meeting through the phone, call the number provided.
• All attendees will be held in a "waiting room" until called on to speak.

Persons addressing the Commission must state their name and address for the record, including whether or not
they are a resident of the City of Roseburg. All remarks shall be directed to the entire Commission. The
Commission reserves the right to delay any action requested until they are fully informed on the matter.

PROVIDING COMMENTS
If you join the meeting via Zoom, please select the "raise hand" button when the Chair calls for speakers. You will be
moved out of the "waiting room" to speak. After you have provided your comments, you will be moved back into the
"waiting room".

If you join the meeting on the phone number you provided to the Community Development Department, you will be brought
into the meeting to speak when the Chair calls for speakers, then moved back to the "waiting room".

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION - AGENDA ITEMS
Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the agenda may do so when the Commission addresses that item.

Agenda items typically begin with establishing those who have party status, (to be explained by the Chair), a report from
staff, followed by Commission questions to staff, then the applicant, along with anyone they wish to call as a witness on
their behalf will be called to speak, followed by those with party status. After all initial testimony is completed there will
be an opportunity for rebuttal. Everyone addressing the Commission is subject to questioning. After the hearing portion
of the item is completed, the Commission will discuss the matter with a motion for consideration being presented and
acted on.

Once final action is taken on Quasi-Judicial matters, the action of the Commission can be appealed to City Council within
14 calendar days of the decision by filing a Notice of Review with the Community Development Department. Action on
Legislative matters is typically a recommendation to City Council and will be forwarded to them for final consideration.

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION - NON-AGENDA ITEMS
Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item not on the evening's agenda, may do so under "Audience Participation."

Persons addressing the Commission must state their full name and address, including whether or not they are a resident
of the City of Roseburg, for the record. All remarks are to be directed to the Commission. For items not on the agenda:

• Presentation should be brief and on a topic of interest to the Planning Commission, such as a general land use
matter.

• These presentations are reserved for new material which has not been previously considered.

The Commission will not be taking action on any item presented under Audience Participation and if needed wili provide
direction to staff for appropriate follow-up.

For further details or information please contact the Community Development Department Monday through Friday, 8-12
and 1-4:30 p. m., closed 12-1 p. m. Tel: 541-492-6750, or e-mail cdd®.citvofrosebura. ora. Roseburg City Hall, 900 SE
Douglas Avenue, Roseburg OR 97470.



CITY OF ROSEBURG
PLANNING COMMISSION

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
June 7, 2021

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Sperry called the regular meeting of the Roseburg Planning Commission to order at 7:06
p. m. on Monday, June 7, 2021 via Zoom.

ROLL CALL

Present: Chair Ron Sperry, Commissioners Victoria Hawks, Stephanie Newman, Dan
Onchuck, and Christy Palmini.

Absent: Commissioners Shelby Osborn and Jaime Yraguen

Others resent: Community Development Director Stuart Cowie, Associate Planner Caleb
Stevens, and Department Technician Chrissy Matthews.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Commissioner Newman moved to approve the May 17, 2021 minutes as submitted. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Palmini and approved with the following votes: Chair
Sperry, Commissioners Newman, Onchuck, and Palmini voted yes. No one voted no.
Commissioner Hawks abstained because she was not present at the May 17, 2021 meeting.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION - None

PUBLIC HEARING

ZC-21-002 - Studio C Architecture on behalf of NeighborWorks Umpqua [Quasi-
Judicial]

Chair Sperry read the procedures forthe Quasi-Judicial hearing and opened the public hearing.
He asked staff if any requests were made for party status.

Mr. Cowie stated a letter in opposition was received from John, Victoria and Tiffany Hokanson
who live across the street from the subject parcel. The letter was emailed to the
Commissioners prior to the meeting. Chair Sperry granted the Hokanson's party status.

No ex-parte contact or conflicts of interest were declared by the Commissioners. Chair Sperry
asked for the staff report.

Mr. Cowie provided an overview of the zone change request by NeighborWorks Umpqua.
They are requesting a zone change from General Commercial (C3) to Central Business District
(CBD) to maximize the density to allow for a future 70-unit housing development with
commercial uses on the ground floor. The current C3 zoning and dwelling density standards
only allow for a maximum of 26 new units to be built. The applicant indicated that the current
dwelling density is not great enough to make the project feasible. By changing the zoning to
CBD, increasing the dwelling density standards, the future development would make financial
sense for the developer. The block is comprised of four (4) separate parcels. The historic

Page 1 of 4 - Planning Commission Minutes June 7, 2021



Kohlhagen apartments and the Howell apartments, also referred to as "Howell four-plex" during
the meeting, sit on two of the four parcels. The Kohlhagen apartments have 52 units and
already utilize the CBD criteria. The zone change request would extend the CBD boundary
slightly. The CBD requires commercial business on the ground floor, residential above and
parking for each apari:ment unit.

Mr. Stevens presented the staff report and a power point to summarize the approval criteria:
Rezone will conform to Roseburg's Comprehensive Plan

• Zoning map
• Comp plan policies (parking). CBD offers on-street parking within 100 feet of

commercial businesses and joint use parking agreements are allowed. The applicant
is proposing a parking garage that would serve 80% of the development.'

Site is suitable for CBD zone (public health, safety & welfare of surrounding area)
• C3 vs CBD zone - increase dwelling density
• Current site conditions - The Kohlhagen and Howell apartments are located on two of

the four parcels.
Rezone is consistent with transportation system

• Traffic Impact Study (TIS). The applicant submitted a TIS which indicated no
improvements are required with the zone change and increased density.

• Existing roadways. The TIS indicated existing roadways are sufficient for the increased
density.

Mr Cowiestated theTIS was based on the Level of Service (LOS) and Volume/Capacity (V/C)
ratio criteria prior to the recent Code amendment regarding mobility standards.

Staff determined the zone change request satisfied the criteria for approval subject to
Conditions 1 and 2 below and recommended the Planning Commission refer the zone change
request to the City Council recommending approval for File ZC-21-002.

Conditions:

1. The applicant shall obtain Site Plan Review and Building Permit Approval prior to the
commencement of any construction of the subject property.

2. Any future development of the property shall fully conform to all the applicable standards
and requirements of the Roseburg Municipal Code.

Mr. Cowie stated the Commission has the ability to add conditions of approval to a zone change
request; however, specific conditions may hinder future development if a developer is unable
to develop their project to meet the specific conditions of the zone change. Any future
development is required to go through the site review application process as well as the
hlistoric Resource Review application process where a project is required to meet zoning and
historic code requirements where specific conditions of approval are determined.

A discussion ensued regarding required parking, commercial space, and the number of
apartment units.

Commissioner Onchuck asked if the Howell four-plex is proposed to be removed.

Page 2 of 4 - Planning Commission Minutes June 7, 2021



Mr. Cowie stated the plans do propose the removal of the Howell four-plex; however, since the
building is located in the historic district, the applicant is required to go through the Historic
Resource Review Commission (HRRC) application process and be approved before removal
of the building.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
Betty Tamm, NeighborWorks Umpqua Interim CEO, 1305 Oak Street, Oakland, not a resident
of Roseburg. She stated there isn't a specific proposal at this time. A zone change is needed
in order to pursue a feasible project.

Jim Walker, Studio C Architecture, 3105 NE Wiedler Street, Portland, not a resident of
Roseburg. He stated they are in the beginning stage of development planning. A zone change
is the first step and when funding becomes available then they can develop a concept. The
site review process would ensure all code criteria is met. He discussed the grade of the parcel,
parking and commercial space.

Commissioner Hawks asked if the proposed housing will be affordable housing.

Mr. Walker stated that has not been determined at this time. The zone change is the first step
and then they can develop a concept.

Ms. Tamm stated NeighborWorks Umpqua has a mix of both market rate and affordable
housing. The Kohlhagen apartments are market rate and The Grand apartments are
affordable housing.

Opposition:
Victoria Hokanson, 848 SE Jackson Street, Roseburg, resident of Roseburg. Mrs. Hokanson
stated it is not in the best interest of the Roseburg Historic downtown district to approve the
rezoning request. She shared her concerns regarding allowing significantly more units than is
currently allowed, and the size of building that could be allowed which would not fit in with the
current historic landscape of downtown. She is not in favor of the historic Howell apartments
being demolished to accommodate a larger development. She is in favor of developing the
property within the current zoning and in keeping with the historic downtown historic aesthetics.

Mr. Cowie stated the request is only for a zone change at this time. Any development or
demolition is required to go through the site review application process as well as the Historic
Resource Review process to meet all code and historic requirements.

Rebuttal:

Ms. Tamm stated NeighborWorks has rehabbed other buildings and they do care about the
historic aspects of downtown. She mentioned that Mrs. Hokanson's letter stated the current
zoning allows for 40 units; however, the current zoning only allows for 26 units.

Mr. Walker stated project density is not the primary key to complementing a historic district.
Rather, scale, rhythm, materiality, fenestration, pedestrian interaction, and detailing are the
key. Throughout Oregon they have successfully designed new buildings directly adjacent to
historic structures by studying things like roof forms, bay spacing, datum lines, the openness
of neighboring structures, and what materials were present in the area. They studied how the
neighborhood aesthetic dealt with these features in concert in order to gauge how to marry the

Page 3 of 4 - Planning Commission Minutes June 7, 2021



goals of their client with that of the neighborhood. He further stated, they welcome discussion
at such a time of project design for the site. In order to help alleviate concerns, he suggested
a condition of approval that requires the applicant to acquire guidance from State Historic
Preservation Office (SHPO) during the site review process.

Mrs. Hokanson asked if metered and free parking can be used to calculate the required number
of spaces for new development on the parcel and can those spaces be counted by other
businesses as well.

Mr. Cowie stated metered and free parking can be counted for the parking requirement. The
Kohlhagen apartments and the any new residential development will have to meet the parking
requirements.

Hearing no further discussion or testimony the public hearing was closed.

Commissioner Newman moved to adopt the Findings of Fact as presented and refer the
request to City Council, recommending approval of the requested Zone Change, with adding
one Condition "Applicant shall seek guidance from State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO)
for any future construction of the subject property at the time a Site Plan Review application is
submitted" referenced as File No. ZC-21-002. The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Palmini. The motion passed with the following votes: Chair Sperry, Commissioners Hawks,
Newman, Onchuck, and Palmini voted yes. No one voted no.

BUSINESS FROM STAFF -

Mr. Cowie shared the Community Development Department is busy processing applications.
A Right of Way Vacation for NE Crescent Street is currently being processed and will go before
City Council.

The Community Development Department was selected for the Resource Assistance for Rural
Environments (RARE) Intern program through the University of Oregon. Intern interviews are
anticipated to be scheduled at the end of this month. Once selected, the intern will work on a
number of Long Range projects.

2020-2021 has been the year of commercial and multifamily development for the City of
Roseburg.

BUSINESS FROM COMMISSION - None

ADJOURNMENT - The meeting adjourned at 8:38 p. m. The next meeting is scheduled for
nday, July 19, 2021.

C-hKLSsy Mflt±!^6ws
l^epflrti^teiA-t T&c. Vivu. cia^

Page 4 of 4 - Planning Commission Minutes June 7, 2021



s^> »»«

GU DE^DI
EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE
WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS 2016

WHAT THIS GUIDE PROVIDES
This guide provides an evaluation tool for planners, policy makers, and other practitioners.

S^S^l, HOW TO USE THIS GUIDE
This guide is intended to serve as an informational and educational tool for land use

planners in Oregon's cities and counties. It includes a matrix intended for jurisdictions to

use in undertaking an internal audit of their land use plans and implementing codes,

including zoning maps, development regulations and the like. It also suggests clear and

straightforward actions that jurisdictions can take to both comply with fair housing law

and affirmatively further fair housing through adopting best practices.

Because the iaw and case h;story are complex, addressing all of the items on this list does not shield your
iur;sd:cti0n from aii potentiai rail- housing claims or lawsuits, bur it does help demonstr te a good faith

effort ro support fair housing.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Fair Housing Council of Oregon would like to express our gratitude

for the generous assistance provided by these additional contributors.

This work would not have been possible without their expertise, counsel,

and wisdom.

Lisa Bates, Professor, Portland State University Urban Studies Department

Bill Carpenter, Chief Information Officer, Oregon Housing and Community

Services

Karen Clearwater, Regional Advisor to the Dept., Oregon hlousing and

Community Services

Alyssa Cudmore, Former FHCO Equity Specialist

• Tom Cusack, Oregon Housing Blog publisher

Gordon Howard, Urban Planning Specialist, Oregon Dept. of Land

Conservation and Development

Ellen Johnson, Attorney, Oregon Law Center and Housing Land Advocates

member

Beth Kaye, FHCO board member and land use policy expert

• Leon Laptook, Affordable housing advocate

Sue Lind, hlousing developer

Jenny Logan, Community Alliance of Tenants and Housing Land Advocates

member

Deb Meihoff, AICP, Communitas LLC

Nancy Murray, FHCO board member and community development lawyer

• Bob Rindy, Senior Policy Analyst, Oregon Dept. of Land Conservation and

Development

• Yesenia Sanchez, Housing Developer, Community Action Team (serving

Columbia, Tillamook, and Clatsop Counties)

Ed Sullivan, Land use attorney, Garvey Schubert Barer, and Housing Land

Advocates member

John VanLandingham, FHCO board member and attorney, Lane County

Legal Aid

This guide was prepared for the Fair Housing Council of Oregon by

Andree Tremoulet, Ph. D., of Commonworks Consulting, in collaboration

with Deb Meihoff, AICP, of Communicas LLC. For further information,

see www.commonworteconsulting.com or contact andree@coniinonworksconsulting.com.

Design work for this guide was developed by Dana Visse, Design and

Consulting.

The work that provided the basis for this guide was supported by

funding under a grant with the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development. The substance and findings of the work are dedicated

to the public. The authors and publisher are solely responsible For the

accuracy of the stetements and interpretations contained in this guide.

Such ;ntsrprsi:a'LJons do not necessarily reflect the views of the Federal

Government.

FAIR
HOUSING
COUNCIL
OF OREGON

www.fhco. org
(503) 223-8197



INTRODUCTION £3?^?-i'%^%

HOW FAIR HOUSING FRIENDLY ARE
YOUR PLANS, CODES AND PRACTICES?

Many planners may not be aware of

the fair housing implications of land

use plans and implementing codes

and how they can play an important

role in promoting fair access to

decent housing—a human necessity

and a pathway to accessing other

opportunities—for all. Where one lives

determines the quality of the air one

breathes, the schools children attend,

the availability of active transportation

options or outdoor space or whether

healthy food choices can be found

nearby. Housing is a platform for

accessing life's needs and opportunities.

While public and private investment

may determine what ultimately gets

built, planners and other public officials

help create and manage the community

blueprint through publicly-approved

plans and codes.

The tools of planning—comprehensive plans,

zoning maps, implementing codes and

practices—are used to help shape the range

of housing opportunities in a community.

For example, these tools affect the land

available for needed housing, the cost of

development, the processes that applicants

must follow (including notice requirements

and public hearings) and the overall

complexity of the development process.

All of these items have a direct impact on

the cost, design and supply of housing for

people of varying backgrounds and abilities.

The location of housing of various types—in

asset-rich or environmentally-poor areas—

has significant implications for residents.

Throughout history, certain groups of people

have been precluded from accessing asset-

rich housing or were otherwise limited in

their choice of housing options.

To address these inequities, federal fair

housing law, first enacted by Congress as

Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968,

prohibits discrimination in housing based

on race, color, religion, national origin, sex,

disability or familial status (the presence of

children in the household)-the seven federal

protected classes. Oregon law also prohibits

discrimination based on source of income,

marital status, sexual orientation (gender

identity), and being a domestic violence

survivor. The law applies to public entities,

private businesses, nonprofits and

individuals.

Fair housing law does not pre-empt the

ability of local government to regulate land

use and zoning, hlowever, local governments

may not exercise that authority in a way that

is inconsistent with federal fair housina law.

Stated simply, local laws cannot overtly or

otherwise have the effect of discriminating

against individuals in housing on the basis of

protected class.

Since the Civil Rights Era, most jurisdictions

have attempted to move away from overtly

discriminatory plans, codes and practices.

h-lowever, vestiges sometimes remain as

outdated definitions, ways of separating

uses or criteria triggering conditional use

permits. They may also exist as policies and

practices that do not appear discriminatory

on the surface but, in fact or in practice,

have a disparate impact on one or more

1 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



FAIRHOUSNG WSiKWiW^f^S^WfWWWSWW

protected classes. A disparate impact

occurs when a policy or action has a negative

effect on a higher proportion of members

of a protected class than those not in a

protected class. Overt discrimination and

disparate impact are both violations of

federal fair housing law.

FAIR HOUSING, AFFORDABLE HOUSING

AND NEEDED HOUSING

Fair housing and affordable housing are

related, but distinct, concepts. Generally,

housing is considered to be affordable

when low income households (those whose

incomes are at or below 60% of area

median income, adjusted for family size, as

determined by MUD) spend no more than

30% of their gross income on housing costs,

including rent and essential utilities. Many, but

by no means all, individuals who are members

of protected classes need affordable housing.

The degree to which there is an overlap

between the population needing access

to affordable housing and those who are

protected by fair housing law varies from

jurisdiction to jurisdiction. While this guide

primarily focuses on ways land use plans

and implementing codes can support fair

housing, it also contains suggestions relevant

to supporting the development of affordable

housing.

Fair housing and affordable housing also

relate to a concept familiar to planners in

Oregon: needed housing, defined in ORS

197.303 as "housing types determined to

meet the need shown for housing within an

urban growth boundary at particular price

ranges and rent levels," including specified

housing types, such as attached and

detached single-family housing and multiple

family housing for both owner and renter

occupancy, government-assisted housing,

mobile home parks, manufactured homes on

individual lots and housing for farmworkers.

The buildable lands provision (ORS 197. 286)

addresses requirements pertaining to land

supply for needed housing. Oregon land use

law thus helps ensure that comprehensive

plans and implementing codes do not

preclude the development of affordable

housing (exclusionary zoning), but it does not

ensure that affordable housing will actually

get built. Some of the topics covered in

the second section of this checklist suggest

ways that local codes can include additional

provisions to support the development of

affordable housing.

The housing needs analysis required

of Oregon municipalities provides an

opportunity to affirmatively further fair

housing. While this guide does not provide

comprehensive guidance on undertaking

a housing needs analysis, it does contain

recommendations for how to increase the

land supply available for affordable and

fair housing purposes, primarily through

removing regulatory barriers. In addition

to these solutions, jurisdictions may elect

to affirmatively further fair housing by

defining a few specific housing types utilized

extensively by protected classes (e.g., group

homes) as needed housing. Mere's why:

ORS 197. 307 requires that, once a need for a

particular housing type has been established,

that housing type must be a permitted use in

one or more zoning districts with sufficient

buildable land to satisfy that need, and that

2 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING Z.ENS GUIDE / 2016



FAIR HOUSING
J

wmssffifiwffmisffSS

only clear and objective standards, conditions

and procedures that do not discourage

development of the housing through

unreasonable cost or delay may be applied.

AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR

HOUSING, NOW AND ON THE HORIZON

Jurisdictions that receive federal funds, either

directly from a federal agency or indirectly

through the State of Oregon, are required

to affirmatively further fair housing. In

addition, governments and states that receive

Community Development Block Grants

(CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships

(HOME), Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG)

or Housing Opportunities for Persons with

AIDS (HOPWA) funds directly from the

US Department of Housing and Urban

Development (hlUD), as well as public

housing agencies (PHAs), are required to

formally analyze impediments to housing

choice on a periodic basis and then

prepare and implement plans to address

those impediments.

On July 19, 2013, the US Department of

Housing and Urban Development issued a

new proposed rule regarding how HUD-

funded jurisdictions must undertake that

analysis. The proposed rule identifies

four areas for local action: improving

integrated living patterns and overcoming

historic patterns of segregation; reducing

racial and ethnic concentrations of

poverty; reducing disparities in access

to community assets such as education,

transit access and employment, as well

as exposure to environmental health

hazards and other stressors that harm a

person's quality of life; and responding

to disproportionate housing needs

by protected class. The land use and

planning implications of this proposed

rule are substantial and may, if adopted,

stimulate a new level of dialogue between

local housing agencies and planning

departments In the jurisdictions to which

it applies.

3 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



HOW FAIR HOUSING FRIENDLY ARE YOUR PLANS, CODES, AND PRACTICES?

PLANNING

TOPIC

DEFINITIONS -

Zoning/

Development

and Building Codes

ACTION

Definition of

disability

GUIDANCE

I If disability is defined in your code, it, at a minimum, must be as inclusive as the definition in the Fair Housing Act
I (Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended). Persons with disabilities are defined as individuals with mental
I or physical impairments which substantially limit one or more major life activities. This definition is a much
I broader interpretation of disability than is generally used in other applications.
I [USDOJ&HUD www.justice. gov/crt/about/hce/final8J. php]

POTENTIAL

PROTECTED
CLASSES

Disability

TYPE OF

STANDARD

Minimum standard

DEFINITIONS -
Zoning/

Development

and Building Codes

Definition of family I If family or household is defined in local code, the definition shall not have the effect of discriminating against
or household I unrelated individuals with disabilities residing together in a group living arrangement or larger extended fannilies

I who wish to reside together.

I [US DOJ & HUD www.justice.gov/crt/about/hce/final8J.php]

I A best practice would be to avoid regulations based on who will be occupying a structure or site and instead focus
I on elements that are more relevant to the scale of activities a structure may generate and the size of structure or

I other physical characteristics.

Disability

National Origin

Color

Race

Familial Status

Minimum standard

and best practice

DEFINITIONS - : Definitions of : Treat all residential homes and/or group homes in the same manner, regardless of whether they are licensed or not.

Zoning/ residential honne Jurisdictions may not impose numerical occupancy limits on group housing for unrelated persons with disabilities
Development Code and/or group home that are more restrictive than numerical occupancy limits for any other unrelated individuals or for families.

[City of San Jacinto, CA Consent Decree 6/10/14 www.ju5tice.gov/crt/about/hce/documents/sanjacintosettle.pdf]
A best practice would be to treat all housing for individuals who have disabilities and live together in a
single-unit dwelling in the same manner in the Zoning/Development Code, regardless of whether the home is
licensed or unlicensed, regardless of whether it serves five or fewer people and regardless of whether it meets
other provisions of the definition of licensed residential home in ORS.

The Special Residences section of ORS 197.660 defines Residential Homes as follows:
• Residential treatment homes, which are facilities that provide residential care and treatment for five or fewer

individuals with mental, emotional or behavioral disturbances or alcohol or drug dependence. [ORS 443.400]

They are licensed by the Oregon Health Authority. [ORS 443.410]

• Residential training homes, which are facilities that provide residential care and training for five or fewer
individuals with mental retardation or other developmental disabilities. They are licensed by Oregon

Department of Human Services. [ORS 443.400]

Adult foster homes, which are family homes or facilities in which residential care is provided in a homelike
environment for five or fewer adults who are not related to the provider by blood or marriage. They are

licensed by either Oregon Department of Human Services or the Oregon Health Authority [ORS 443. 705]

Disability Minimum standard

and best practice

4 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



PLANNING

TOPIC

DEFINITIONS -
Zoning /

Development Code

USE RESTRICTIONS -
Zoning/

Development Code

ACTION i GUIDANCE

Definition of | Treat all residential facilities in the same manner, regardless of whether they are licensed or not. Jurisdictions may
residential facility | not impose numerical occupancy limits on group housing for unrelated persons with disabilities that are more

restrictive than numerical occupancy limits for any other unrelated individuals or for families.

[City of San Jacinto, CA Consent Decree 6/10/14, www.justice. gov/crt/about/hce/documents/sanjadntosettle. pdf]

The Special Residences sedion of ORS 197.660 defines Residential Facilities as follows:

Residential care facilities, which are facilities that provide residential care in one or more buildings on
contiguous properties for six or more socially dependent individuals or individuals with physical disabilities.

[ORS 443.400] Licensed by Department of Human Services. [ORS 443.410]

Residential training facilities, which are facilities that provide residential care and training in one or more

buildings on contiguous properties for six or more individuals with mental retardation or other developmental
disabilities.[ORS 443.400] Licensed by Department of Human Services. [ORS 443.410]
Residential treatment facilities, which are facilities that provide residential care and treatment in one or
more buildings on contiguous properties for six or more individuals with mental, emotional or behavioral
disturbances or alcohol or drug dependence. [ORS 443.400] Licensed by Oregon Health Authority.

[ORS 443.410]

Zoning for

residential homes

and/or group homes

POTENTIAL

I PROTECTED
!CLASSES

Disability

Jurisdictions may not impose restrictions on housing for persons with disabilities that are not imposed on housing

for an equal or greater number of persons without disabiiities, regardless of whether the housing is licensed or not.
[City of San Jacinto, CA Consent Decree 6/10/14]

; Residential homes (see definitions above) must be a permitted use in all residential zones and in any commercial

zone which allows single-unit dwellings. [ORS 197. 660 through ORS 197.670]

Your code must not impose use restrictions on licensed residential homes that are not imposed on other single-

unit dweliings. [ORS 197.660 through ORS 197.670, www.justice.gov/crt/about/hce/documents/sanjacintosettle.pdf]
i • Your code must not impose restrictions or standards on residential homes or group homes that are based on

the degree to which the residents are disabled.

Your code must not treat licensed residentia! homes and unlicensed residential homes/group homes

differently. [City of San Jacinto, CA Consent Decree 6/10/14]

A best practice is to apply the same guidelines to all structures that have the size and physical characteristics of

single-unit dwellings and involve a scale of activity similar to that ofsingle-unit dwellings occupied by families.

Disability

TYPE OF

STANDARD

Minimum standard

Minimum standard

and best practice

5 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



PLANNIN

TOPIC

PERMITTING -
Zoning/

Development Code

ACTION

Process to develop

residential homes

and/or group homes

GUIDANCE

I Do not impose restrictions on housing for persons with disabilities that are not imposed on housing for an equal or
I greater number of persons without disabilities, regardless of whether the housing is licensed or not.
I [City of San Jacinto, CA Consent Decree 6/10/14, www.justice.gov/crt/about/hce/docunnents/sanjacintosettle. pdf]
I • Your code must not impose notice criteria on licensed residential homes that are not required for single-unit

dwellings.

i • Your code must not impose impact or permit fees on licensed residential homes that it does not impose on
other single-unit dwellings.

I A best practice would be to apply the same guidelines to all structures that have the size and physical charaderistics
j of single-unit dwellings and involve a scale of activity similar to that of single-unit dwellings occupied by families.

POTENTIAL

PROTECTED

Disability

TYPE OF

STANDARD

Minimum standard

and best practice

DEVELOPMENT AND

DESIGN STANDARDS -
Zoning/Development

Code

Development I Jurisdictions may not impose restrictions on housing for persons with disabilities that are not imposed on housing
standards for | for an equal or greater number of persons without disabilities, regardless of whether the housing is licensed or not.
residential homes I [City of San Jacinto, CA Consent Decree 6/10/14 http://www. justice. gov/crt/about/hca/documents/sanjacintosettle. pdf]
and/or group homes | This includes:

I • Your code must not impose design requirements on licensed residential homes that it does not impose on
other single-unit dwellings.

I • Your code must not impose siting criteria on licensed residential honnes or group homes (e.g., no residential
homes within 1000 feet of each other) that it does not impose on other single-unit dwellings. Note: This may

be permissible if there is a current and real concern that residential homes are segregated in a certain area,
separate from the general population AND there is no other way to achieve integration.
[US DOJ & HUD http://www. justice. gov/crt/about/hce/final8J. php ]

I A best pradice would be to apply the same guidelines to all structures that have the size and physical characteristics
I ofsingle-unit dwellings and involve a scale of activity similar to that of single-unit dwellings occupied by families.

Disabiiity Minimum standard

and best practice

USE RESTRICTIONS -

Zoning/

Development Code

Residential facilities (see definition above) must be a permitted use in any zone where multi-unit housing is a

permitted use [ORS 197.667]. Residential facilities must be a permitted or conditional use in any zone where multi-
unit housing is a conditional use. [ORS 197.667]

Your code must not impose use restridions on residential facilities that are not imposed on multi-unit housing.
Your code must not impose restrictions or standards on residential facilities based on the degree to which the

residents are disabled.

Disability Minimum standard

6 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



PLANNING

I USE RESTRICTIONS -
I Zoning /

Deveboment Code

ACTION GUIDANCE

I Your code may regulate a facility (other than a licensed residential facility) that serves a group of unrelated persons

I living structures | who live together in a structure larger than a Sfngle-unit dwelling. Dcampies of group iiving structures that provide
I and shared living | sleeping areas and at least one set of cooking and sanitary facilities include senior housing, congregate living and
other than licensed | assisted living facilities. However, such regulations must not discriminate against the residents on the basis of race,
residential facilities | color, national origin, reiigion, sex, disability or familial status (families with minor children).

POTENTIAL

PROTECTED

CLASSES

NA

TYPE OF
STANDARD

NA

USE RESTRI CTIONS, | Establishing housing j If your housing needs analysis establishes that a need for a particular housing type exists, then that housing type: Best practice
I DEVELOPMENT I types that benefit
I STANDARDS, VARIANCES, i protected classes as
I OR PROCEDURES - ; needed housing

I Zoning/ :
I Development Code

Must be a permitted use in one or more zoning districts with sufficient buildable land to satisfy that need; and

Only clear and objedive standards, conditions and procedures that do not discourage development of the
housing through unreasonable cost or delay may be applied [ORS 197.307]

USE RESTRICTIONS -
Zoning/ Development
Code

Zoning for onsite

: services

; A residential facility with onsite services available to both residents and nonresidents of the facility should be a

permitted use in commercial zones or mixed use zones that allow combined residential and commercia! uses.

Disability Best practice

I MAPPING AND ; Zoning for onsite

JBUILDABLELANDS j services
INVENTORY- |
I Zoning/ Development j

I Code

DEVELOPMENT ; Reasonable
: STANDARDS, VARIANCES, | accommodation
OR PROCEDURES- : for people with

• Your community should have deveiopable land or available sites in commercial or mixed use zones that allow

I combined residential and commercial uses to accommodate residential facilities with services for non-residents and
I residents.

Disability Best practice

Zoning/ Development
Code

disabilities

I Your code must provide an opportunity for individuals with disabilities or their representatives to request a

; reasonable accommodation in regulations and procedures to ensure equal access to housing for people with
disabilities.

I • Examples include setback or yard area modifications for ramps, handrails or other such accessibility

improvements; hardscape additions, such as widened driveways, parking area orwalkways; building additions

for accessibility; or tree removal

i To be reasonable, the accommodation may not 0) impose an undue financial or administrative burden on the city or

I (2) require a fundamental alteration in the nature of the city's land use and zoning program.

I Your code should describe how one applies fora reasonable accommodation, how such requests are acted upon,

I and how they may be appealed.

I [US DOJ & HUD www.justice. gov/crt/about/hce/final8J. php and also www.hud. gov/offices/fheo/library/

; huddojstatement. pdq

Disability Minimum standard

and best practice

7 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



PLANNING

TOPIC

ADMINISTRATION &

PROCEDURES -
Zoning/ Development

ACTION ! GUIDANCE

Reasonable i To ensure that the reasonable accommodation process is available to people with disabilities and their
accommodation I representatives, your department should have a form and instructions available. If an applicant with a disability
for people with I requires assistance in making the request, staff should provide the assistance necessary to ensure that the process is
disabilities j available to the applicant.

I [US DOJ & HUD www.justice.gov/crt/about/hce/final8J.php and also www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/library/
; huddojstatement. pdf]

POTENTIAL

! PROTECTED
I CLASSES

Disability

TYPE OF
STANDARD

Best practice

PARKING STANDARDS,
VARIANCES, OR
PROCEDURES -
Zoning/ Development

Code

Parking standards

for specialized

housing for persons

with disabilities

Your code should enable applicants developing housing for persons with disabilities to request a reasonable
accommodation to existing code for parking, such as adjustments to maximum parking restrictions to accomnnodate
parking for caregivers.

Your code should have clear and objective standards defining when adjustments may be made to parking standards
based on the proximity of the development to transit or the likelihood that residents will not own personal vehicles.

If a variance/adjustment is required, the cost, review process, or information required should not be significantly
greater than clear and objective review and should not have the effect of discouraging the request (e.g., fees,
engineering study, and extent of discretionary review). Any additional information obtained from the applicant
should be of sufficient benefit to warrant this additional step.

Disability Best practice

ADMINISTRATIONS
PROCEDURES AND
ZONING/DEVELOPMENT

CODE

OPERATIONS OF

PLANNING & BUILDING
DEPARTMENTS

OPERATIONS OF
PLANNING & BUILDING
DEPARTMENTS

Conditional uses :. Avoid conditional uses for residential development and limit the scope of the review for residential portions of
; mixed use and planned unit developments.

All

Fair housing training | Jurisdiction staff should be informed about fair housing. They should know where to refer clients for information
I about applicable fair housing laws, regulations and best pradices. They should know where to refer individuals for
I assistance who believe that they may have experienced discrimination. Contact the Fair Housing Council of Oregon
; for information on future training opportunities.

Planning services | Planning services must be fully available to all without respect to ability/disability and national origin. Either the
I facility where development and permit facilities are usually provided must be accessible, or the jurisdiction must
I have an alternative accessible location where those services can be delivered.

I • Planning services must be available to those with mobility, auditory, vision or other disabilities.
I • Planning services must be available in other languages, if necessary.

Disability

National origin

Best practice

Best practice

Minimum standard

8 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



HOW AFFORDABLE HOUSING FRIENDLY ARE YOUR PLANS, CODES, AND PRACTICES?

In many jurisdictions, a majority of people who are subject to potential discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, disability or familial status (federal
protected classes) or marital status, sexual orientation, source of income or domestic violence survivors (Oregon State protected classes) may also require iower-cost (affordable) housing.
Thus, regulations, plans, codes and practices that act as barriers to the development or maintenance of affordable housing may have a disparate impact on protected classes and may
violate fair housing regulations. Conversely, efforts to promote the development of affordable housing may have the effect of affirmatively furthering fair housing. However, only
addressing the need for affordable housing, without also addressing other kinds of fair housing issues, is not sufficient to ensure compliance with fair housing laws or requirements to
affirmatively further fair housing.

The standards below are provided for those jurisdictions that find that they have a nexus between affordable and fair housing and thus wish to encourage the development of affordable
housing as one of the ways that they affirmatively furthering fair housing.

ANNING TOPIC

MAPPING AND BUILDABLE LANDS INVENTORY -
Zoning/ Development Code

ACTION

Continuing review of needed
housing

DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN STANDARDS
Zoning/ Development Code

Minimum lot size and

affordability

GUIDANCE

; Review your housing needs analysis and track how developable
: residential land is being built out, to ensure that sufficient housing is
being built that meets the needs of the full range of current and future

I residents and that sufficient and appropriately-zoned land is available for
; needed housing.
; [Goal 10, OAR 660.015, ORS 197.303]

Your code should not impose a minimum lot size that has the effect
:: of pricing-out lower-cost housing. Your minimum lot size should

I not unnecessarily constrain the number of housing units that can be
; constructed on buildable land.

TYPE OF STANDARD

Required updates are minimum standards;
ongoing review constitutes a best practice

Best practice

DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN STANDARDS •
Zoning/ Development Code

PARKING STANDARDS
Zoning/ Development Code

Setbacks and affordability I Your code should not impose setback requirements that either have
: the effect of pricing-out lower-cost housing by requiring large lot
development or otherwise constrain the supply of housing that can be

\ used for the development of lower-cost housing.

Best practice

Minimum parking j Minimum parking requirements per dwelling unit of attached and/
requirements and affordability | or multi-unit housing should not be greater than those required of

I detached single-unit housing, thereby increasing financial burden on
; housing types that require less land and are, therefore, more affordable.

Best practice

9 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



USE RESTRICTIONS -
Zoning/ Development Code

USE RESTRICTIONS -
Zoning/ Development Code

DEVELOPMENTS DESIGN AND
LAND DIVISION STANDARDS -
Zoning/ Development Code

DEVELOPMENTS DESIGN AND
LAND DIVISION STANDARDS -
Zoning/ Development Code

DEVELOPMENTS DESIGN AND
LAND DIVISION STANDARDS-
Zoning/ Development Code

USE RESTRICTIONS-
Zoning/ Development Code

USE RESTRICTIONS -
Zoning/ Development Code

Manufactured housing and
mobile homes standards

Duplexes and affordability

Small lot development and
affordable land supply

Flag lots and affordable land
supply

Alley-accessed lots and
affordable land supply

Your code must allow manufadured housing as follows:
Allow manufactured housing that meets certain standards for
minimum size, appearance and energy efficiency as permitted uses
in single-unit zones (with the exception of historic districts and lots
adjacent to historic districts). [ORS 197. 312 through ORS 197.314]

I • Allow manufactured housing subdivisions in single-unit zones.

I • Allow mobile or manufactured dwelling parks in zoning districts
that allow 6 to 12 dwelling units per acre. Establish only clear and
objective standards for the manufadured dwelling parks. Your code
must not establish a minimum lot size of less than one acre for the
manufadured dwelling park.
[ORS 1S7. 303, 197314 and 197.475 through ORS 197,432]

Consider allowing duplexes on corner lots in single-unit zones as a
means to encourage the development of affordable housing.

I Consider allowing the development of existing substandard lots (lots of
I record) as a means to increase the supply of affordable land available for
I residential development.

Minimum standard

Best practice

Best practice

I Consider allowing development on flag lots as a means to increase the
I supply of land available for residential development.

I Best practice

I Consider allowing the development of housing units that are accessed
I solely from alleys as a means to increase the supply of land available for
I residential development.

Best practice

Row houses & attached
houses and affordability

I Consider allowing the development of row houses and/or attached
I townhouses in single-unit zones as a means to encourage the

j development of affordable housing.

Best practice

Single-room occupancy j Allow for single room occupancy units (SROs), residential hotels or | Best practice
units(SROs) and affordability | rooming houses as a way to increase the supply of smaller affordable |

I housing units. I

j Existing hotels/motels could be allowed to be converted to single room |
I occupancy units (SROs). j

10 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



A TON GUIDANCE

USE RESTRICTIONS -
Zoning/ Development Code

Accessory dwelling units and j Allow the development of accessory dwelling units on single-unit lots as
affordability I a means to increase the suppiy of affordable housing.

DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN STANDARDS •
Zoning/ Development Code

Minimum density requirement | Include minimum density requirements in multi-unit zones as a way
in multi-unit zones | to ensure the capacity and land-efficient development needed to

I accommodate affordable housing.

j USE RESTRICTIONS -
I Zoning/ Development Code

Homeless camping provisions | Consider allowing homeless camping on up to two parcels [ORS 446.265],
: on land owned by faith-based organizations [US Religious Land Use and
I Institutionalized Persons Act of 2000] or as homeless overnight street
I parking in appropriate places, such as industrial zones.

I DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN STANDARDS -
I Zoning / Development Code

I ADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES AND
DEVELOPMENT & DESIGN STANDARDS

Density bonus for affordable j Consider creating a density bonus for affordable housing in single-unit
housing | zones as a means to encourage the development of affordable housing.

I Provision could address the number of allowed units, additional floor

I area ratio, site arrangement/set back standards, and/or height increase.

Planned unit developments,
cluster subdivisions

I Consider including code provisions that permit planned unit
I developments and/or cluster subdivisions as a means to encourage
the development of a variety of housing types, including those that are
affordable.

i TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS AND I Skinny streets and
j PROCEDURES- i affordability
I Land Division, Subdivision, Zoning Code ;

Consider allowing the use of skinny streets or other alternative, lower-

cost street standards as a way to reduce overall development costs.

TYPE OF STANDARD

Best practice

Best practice

Best practice

Best practice

Best practice

Best practice

ADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES AND
ZONING/ DEVELOPMENT CODE AND
OPERATIONS OF PLANNING AND BUILDING
DEPARTMENTS

I Expedited review for
i affordable housing

i Consider instituting processes for expediting the development review of
affordable housing.

Best practice

I ADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES - I Financing system
j Zoning/ Development Code and Operations of | development charges and fees
I Planning and Building Departments j for affordable housing

Consider establishing a method of financing the cost of system
development charges (SDCs) and/or permit fees for affordable housing.

Ifyourjurisdidion demands that its lien be in first position, this may
render this option unfeasible for publicly subsidized housing units.

Best practice

11 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



PLANNING TOPI

ADMINISTRATION & PROCEDURES AND
DEMOLITION ORDINANCE(S)

Demolition permits and
encouraging relocation of
strudures for affordable

housing

Consider requiring that property owners applying for demolition
permits be notified that nonprofit organizations may be willing to accept
donations of the improvement as an alternative to demolition.

TYPE OF STANDARD

Best practice

12 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon EXAMINING LOCAL LAND USE WITH A FAIR HOUSING LENS GUIDE / 2016



I II
1111
II I

^

»»0

_S<ift OftO

^

GUIDE for
ELECTED OFFICIALS

Common
Ground

Inclusive
Communities

Toolkit
July 2014

FAIR
HOUSING
COUNCIL
OF OREGON



Al
HOUSING
COUN
OF ORFGON

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Fair Housing Council of Oregon would like to express our gratitude for the generous assistance

provided by these additionel contributors. This work would not have been possible without their

expertise, counsel, and wisdom.

Lisa Bates, Professor, Portland State University Urban Studies Department

Biil Carpenter, Chief [nformation Off'cer, Oregon Housing and Community Services

Karen Clearwater, Regional Advisor to the Dept., Oregon Housing and Community Services

AEyssa Cudmore, Former FHCO Equity Specialist

• Tom Cusack, Oregon Housing Blog pubiishsr

Gordon Howard, Urbsn Pianning Specisiist, O.'egon Dspt. of Lsnd Consei-vstion end

Developmant

Eflen Johnson, Attorney, Oregon Lsw Cents;- enc; h-;ousing. Lend Ac'voce. tes member

Beth Kaye, FHCO bosrd mambsr and. fand use poiicy expert

Lean Laptook, Affore'sbls housing sdvocste

Sue Lind, Housing o'evsioper

Jenny Lagan, Community AliiBnc® ofTensnts end i-'ousing Lsnc' Ac'voca'css msmbei-

Deb Meihoff, A!CP, Communi'css LLC

Nancy Murray, FHCO board member and community development lawyer

Bob Rindy, Senior Policy Analyst, Oregon Dept. of Land Consen/ation and Development

Yesenia Sanchez, Housing Developer, Community Action Team (serving Columbia, Tillamook,

and Clatsop Counties)

Ed Sullivan, Land use attorney, Garvey Schubert Barer, and Housing Land Advocates member

This Guide was prepared for the Fair Housing Council of Oregon by Andree Tremoulet, Ph. D., of

Commonworks Consulting. For further information, see www.commonworksconsulting.com or

contact andree@commonworksconsulting.com.

Design work for this guide was developed by Dana Visse, Design and Consulting.

The work that provided the basis for this Guide was supported by funding under a grant with the
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The substance and findings of the work are

dedicated to the public. The authors and publisher are solely responsible for the accuracy of the
statements and interpretations contained in this Guide. Such interpretations do not necessarily
reflect the views of the Federal Government.



^»0 00<»

GUIDE fo

COMMON
GROUND

r

ELECTED OFFICIALS

TABLE OF CONTENTS
July 2014

SECTION 1
THE BASICS

An introduction to fair Ifousing and inclusive
communities

FAIR AFFORDABLE ING AND
HOUSING FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES
An introduction to the two types of housing
developments where concerns around fair ar
especially likely to

^^>
SECTION

INFORMATION FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS

How to engage constructively and stay on the right
side of the law

RESOURCES

Information about other guides and key resources
for those who wish to go deeper



This GUIDE IS FOR PUBLIC OFFICIALS,
including elected officials, planning
commission members, planners and other
staff for cities and counties in Oregon
who seek to understand their role in

addressing neighborhood conflicts over
residential uses related to fair housing.
When such conflicts arise, public officials
often find themselves in the middle,

acting informally as arbiters or more
formally as decision-makers. This guide
is intended to help you understand your
role and stay on the right side of the
law. While there is no "app" for creating
inclusive, welcoming neighborhoods that
are safe places to live and raise families,
new knowledge and understanding
can help build a strong foundation for
productive engagement. This guide aims
to provide that information.

From our ancient roots as hunters and

gatherers, we human beings are hard-wired
to be wary of situations that are unfamiliar
and people who seem different from us. We
also have a sense of territory. Instinctually, we

feel an impulse to exert control over areas we

consider belong to us.

Fortunately, we're also hard-wired to want
to live in a community. The communitarian

impulse supports our efforts to figure out
how to get along and to seek benefit from

associating with those who have abilities and
insights different from ours. It takes hard
work to navigate our differences and reach

solutions that provide an acceptable level of

personal security for everyone. The first step
starts with communication.

When changes are planned for a

neighborhood, whether it is a single house, a
new apartment complex or a new institution

such as an assisted care facility, sometimes

neighbors object. They may not oppose the
proposed project per se, but they may object
to its location in their neighborhood. They

may believe it belongs somewhere, as long as

it is somewhere else.

Sometimes opoosition is based on non-

discriminatory factors—fact-based concerns

about traffic, for example—that do place an

undue burden on a neighborhood. However,

opposition can also represent a desire to
avoid having to deal with people who are

viewed as being "different. " Sometimes

external impacts like traffic and parking

problems masquerade as rationales for
opposition when the real motivation is a

desire for social exclusivity.

While supporting the development of an
inclusive community is an art, not a science,

there are some clear rules, based in federal

and state law, which govern what is lawful

and what is not. This guide provides guidance

on those fair housing rules.

This GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS is

one of a series of three guides that provide

practical, experience-based information to
stakeholders who may become involved

with local opposition to new housing or new

neighbors. The other two guides are:

• GUIDE FOR NEIGHBORS

• GUIDE FOR HOUSING PROVIDERS

4 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



THIS GUIDE HAS
FOUR SECTIONS

3.

THE BASICS

An introduction to fair

housing as it relates to
inclusive communities

INFORMATION FOR
ELECTED OFFICIALS

How to engage
constructively and
stay on the right side
of the law

SOURCING

This guide draws extensively from guides produced
for other states and audiences. For ease of reading,
we have elected to not cite specific sources in the
body of this guide, but included them in the list of
resources that forms the final chapter. We wish to
thank and recognize the many sources whose work
provided the foundation for this guide.

COMMON GROUND: GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 5



^fttf-BASK5

This section of the guide provides an
introduction to fair housing concepts
and touches on some of the most

common rules that come into play
when a new housing development
or a change in use of an existing
residential use sparks concerns in a
community about the kinds of new
neighbors who may move into the
area.

INTRODUCTION
Neighborhoods are changing all the time.

Neighbors move in and out and businesses

come and go as well. For some, change can

be challenging and can make people feel

uneasy or conjure up fears of the unknown.

But change can also be an opportunity. This
guide focuses on the opportunity to channel
change in a way that fosters inclusive

communities.

Fair housing laws ensure access to housing

opportunities for all, regardless of their
backgrounds, beliefs or abilities. In effect,
fair housing laws help identify which issues

can be legally addressed when community

concerns arise, and which infringe upon

the rights of others not yet living in the

neighborhood. Neighborhood activists,

public officials, city staff and developers
all need to understand the law. The law

helps to achieve a balance between existing

neighbors' concerns and the right of all
people to access a range of housing options

and neighborhoods.

FAIR HOUSING AND
PROTECTED CLASSES
The purpose of fair housing laws is to

provide access to housing choice by
everyone, free from discrimination. The
federal Fair Housing Act makes it unlawful

to discriminate against people seeking to

obtain housing. A wide range of housing-

related activities are covered by fair housing

law, including renting, selling, lending,

zoning and providing insurance. Under
national fair housing laws, it is illegal to

deny access to housing to people because
of their race, color, national origin, religion,

gender, familial status (the presence of
children in a household) or disability.

These seven characteristics are called the

federal protected classes. In Oregon, it

is also illegal to discriminate in housing

transactions based on a person's marital

status, source of income (including, as of

July 1, 2014, Housing Choice/Section 8
Vouchers), sexual orientation (including

gender identity) or status as a domestic
violence victim—Oregon's protected classes.

Some cities and counties have identified

additional local protected classes that apply

within their boundaries.

Being a member of a protected class does

not give someone the right to engage in
unlawful activities. For example, if someone

who is disabled or a person of color

commits a robbery, he/she is subject to

arrest and prosecution just like anyone else.

The Fair Housing Act affords no protections

6 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



DEFINITION

in-clu-sive

adjective \in-'klu-siv, -ziv\
: open to everyone : not limited to certain people

com-mu'nj-ty
noun \k9-'myu-no-te\
: an interacting population of various kinds of
individuals in a common location
Source:

www.merriam-webster. com/dictionary

to individuals who present a direct threat

to others. Determining whether someone

poses such a directthreat must be made

on an individualized basis, however, and

cjannot be based on general assumptions or
speculation about a group of people or how
individuals who are part of that group (such
as people with mental health disabilities)

might act.

Nor do fair housing laws (with one

exception, special accommodations for

people with disabilities, discussed in a

later section) convey special privileges
or rights to an individual based on his or

her membership in a protected class. The

intention of federal, state, and local fair

housing laws is to require that all individuals

be given the same treatment, the same

services, and offered an equal opportunity to

live in a home of their choice.

PROTECTED CLASSE

FEDERAL
• race

• color

• national origin
• religion
• gender
• familial status

TtTiP-presence-oTcRTT9Ten7n- a~

• disability

STATE
- marital status

source of income

• sexual onentatio

• status as a domestic violence survivor

COMMON CROUNte GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 7



Tttf 0

FAIR HOUSING AND TYPES OF
DISCRIMINATION
Fair housing law protects against three kinds

of discrimination:

Direct Evidence: Actively and openly

limiting access to housing on the basis

of protected class. An example of direct

evidence would be the refusal to rent to

someone solely because he was born in

Saudi Arabia and is Muslim. That would

represent discrimination on the basis of
national origin and religion.

Unequal Treatment: Treating people

differently based on protected class

status; for example, requiring a renter

with two children to pay twice the

security deposit of a renter without
children is discrimination on the basis of

familial status.

Disparate Impact: Having a

discriminatory effect on a protected class

while appearing to treat everyone the

same. For example, giving preference to

renting to households with people who
don't work in the local fish cannery would

have a disparate impact on the Latino

population if the vast majority of cannery
workers are of Hispanic national origin.

^
THE FAIR HOUSING ACT

Title VIII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968 (Fair Housing

Act, codified at 42 U. S. C.
3601-3619), as amended,
prohibits discrimination in the
sale, rental, and financing of
dwellings, and in other housing-
related ransac ions, based
on race, color, national origin
rel gion, sex fami ial statu
(including children under the
age of 18 living with parents
or lega custodians, pregnant
women and people securing
custody of children under the
age of 18) and disability. At the
urging of President Lyndon B.
Johnson, Congress approved
the Civil Rights Act of 1968, and
it was signed into law one week
after the assassination of Dr.
Martin Luther King, Jr

«««

8 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



ifiPARATE IMPACT AND
LAND USE LAWS
It i's important to note that a practice does

not need to be intentionally discriminatory

for it to be in violation of fair housing laws.

O'ne of the complicated realities of American

culture is that discriminatory practices—

practices that have disproportionately

negative effects based on protected class—

have occurred for decades before fair

housing laws were adopted. Discriminatory

practices are so deeply imbedded in our

institutions, traditions and ways of doing

business that it can be hard to identify and

isolate them. We continue those institutions

and practices, unwittingly perpetuating their

negative effects.

One of the main ways that the concept of

disparate impact affects neighborhood

quality is through zoning ordinances and

practices. Fair housing laws prohibit land

use regulations, restrictive covenants and

conditional or special use permits from

imposing special conditions that have the

effect of limiting housing choice based on

protected class status. In the past, deed

restrictions were used to prohibit the sale

of homes in certain areas to people of color

and, in some cases, people from specific

national origins. Upheld as legal by a

Supreme Court decision in 1917 (.Buchanan v.

Warley, 245 U. S. 60 (1917)), such restrictions

are now null and void by virtue of the Fair

Housing Act of 1968. A more contemporary

example of a policy that would have a

disparate impact is requiring an applicant

seeking to build a single-unit house for

five unrelated people who have disabilities

(a protected class) to undergo additional

hearings, reviews or community meetings

that are not required for a single-unit

house for any other group of five unrelated

individuals.

A recent example of disparate impact and

jurisdictional involvement is the Mount Holly

v. Mount Holly Gardens Citizens in Action,

Inc., in which the Township of Mount Holly

planned to tear down existing housing to

build higher-end housing. The citizens

who lived in the existing housing protested,

saying that they would not be able to afford

to live in the new housing and this would

have a disparate impact on the township's

minority population. The citizen group sued

the jurisdiction under the Fair Housing

Act, citing disparate impact. The case was

settled in favor of the citizen group before it

reached the Supreme Court.

fi^if^ COMMON <aiOUNDi GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 9



fttf-eASfH- 0
r—, vmwyw^mrwy, w^wwwsw/vw. vwfrf. f^

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION
FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES
As mentioned above, people with disabilities

do have an extra privilege under fair housing

to ensure that they can access equal housing

opportunity. The Fair Housing Act requires

housing providers respond to requests for
reasonable accommodations. These are

exceptions to rules, policies, practices or

services to enable people with disabilities to

live in the residence. This includes physical

modifications to make the residence

accessible. Local officials are also required

to consider reasonable accommodations to

zoning, building codes and ordinances.

Local jurisdictions are required to make

case-by-case determinations about what

is reasonable based on the facts of the

particular case under consideration. For

example, the accommodations required to

assist people with mobility impairments may
be different from those needed to assist

people with loss of hearing. In neither case
could basic health and safety precautions be

set aside, nor could the general nature of the

zoning of the neighborhood be changed.

[;
/6>

^

WHAT DOES
DISABILITY MEAN?

There are many different
definitions of disability. The one

relevant to fair housing is the
one included in the Fair Housing
Act, which states that someone
is disabled if he or she has a

physical or mental impairment
which substantially limits one
or more major life activities,
'ncluding having a record of o
being regarded s having such
impairment (42 U.S.C 3602 (h))

FREE SPEECH AND
PUBLIC DECISIONS
Fair housing laws require that public

decisions about housing developments

not be based on the race, color, religion,

sex, national origin, familial status or

disability of the residents. It also prohibits

public decisions and policies that have a

disproportionate impact on members of one

or more protected classes.

Community members have the right, under

First Amendment free speech protections, to

express their opposition to projects on any

10 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



basis (as long as it does not constitute illegal
intimidation). However, land use and other

public decisions may not be made on the

basis of concerns based upon discriminatory

assumptions. Local officials, including
staff, may only make their decisions based

on fact-based, non-discriminatory factors.
Furthermore, the law prohibits the public
from asking for information about the extent

or type of disability an individual or group of
individuals may have.

CONCLUSION
The creation of safe, inclusive communities—

places where people from a variety of
backgrounds and abilities can thrive—is more

of an art than a science. It involves achieving
a delicate balance among many different
pairs of opposing forces, such as:

• The desire of longstanding residents to

control their community's future vs. the

desire of newcomers to have housing
choices

• The need to apply laws equally to all vs.

the requiremenRo be flexible around the

margins if so requested by someone with

a disability (reasonable accommodation).

I
^

000

CONFRONTING EMBEDDED
DISCRIMINATION?

Stella Adams, a fair housing
consultant from Durham, North
Carolina, compares deeply
imbedded discriminatory practice
from the past that continue into
the present to sour dough starter
that incorporates some toxic yeast.
When new loaves are made from
the starter, the bad yeast is baked in
o the new loaves, even though the
baker had no idea that toxic yeast
was present. Furthermore, the bad
yeas is incorporated into the dough
left over to make new starter for

the next batch of loaves. Getting
rid of the bad leavening requires
a conscious choice and hard work

to create fresh, clean batch of
"mothe " sourdough starter.

^ COMMON GROUNDS GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS /11



///'/wy//y, iV^y^ww/^iWM/wft'^/^/'/^f^^ft'^^/r^^^

Fair housing issues may arise with
respect to any kind of housing
development and in any kind
of neighborhood. For example,
opposing a mosque's efforts to
partner with a developer to create
a new apartment complex in the
neighborhood would likely be a fair
housing violation if the objection
based on not wanting people who
practice Islam to move into the
eighborhood. A city that refuses to

permit the development of a high-
end assisted living facility for adults
with Alzheimer's disease based on
the complaints of neighbors who
don't want to live next door to "crazy

people who wander" would also
likely be a violation of fair housing
laws based on disability.

While fair housing issues may
arise in many different kinds of
situations, there are two kinds
of housing developments where
both neighborhood resistance and
fair housing issues may surface:
subsidized/low cost/low income/
affordable housing (it goes by
many names) and projects serving
people with disabilities (also called
special needs housing). This chapter
considers both in some detail.

THE OVERLAP BETWEEN
FAIR HOUSING AND
SUBSIDIZED HOUSING
In most communities, the majority of people

who need subsidized housing are also

people whose access to housing choice
is protected under fair housing law. For

example, in many communities, a greater

share of people of color (race, national

origin and color) may need subsidized

housing than the majority population;

thus, in this community, the rejection

of subsidized housing would have a

disparate impact on people of color. The

reasons for this are complex and have

deep historical roots related to decades

of discriminatory practices that impacted

the life opportunities of people of color

and other groups, as well as contemporary

patterns and institutional practices that
have a disparate impact. The diagram below

illustrates the overlap, or nexus, between fair

housing and subsidized housing.

FAIR*
AFFORDABLE
HOUSING

FAIR
HOUSING



^<^^?'%<<^'f%!ii((i*^^^^^^^/^^'w%^^'^%<%!%?^i^%^^

Rejecting a housing project on the grounds

that tt will serve low income people is, in

most instances, a violation of fair housing
because that decision would have the effect

of discriminating against people on the

basis of their membership in a protected

class, regardless of whether or not the

discrimination was intentional. In other

words, that decision would have a disparate

impact on minority populations protected
under fair housing laws.

While the nexus between fair housing and

affordable housing is a key principle, it is

also important to remember that people

who are not low-income can also experience

housing discrimination. For example, during

the housing crisis of the last decade, people
of color in some cities tended to be offered

riskier home mortgages (with higher interest

rates and, in most cases, a greater likelihood

of default) than the majority population with

similar incomes. While these homebuyers

of color were not low income, they likely

experienced discriminatory practices in the

mortgage lending market.
'^



L__
v/Ay////^/^My^/ftY////y/^w^r^^Aw^w/^^^^^^^>M>^^^^

FAIR HOUSING PROTECTIONS
FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF
AFFORDABLE HOUSING
Fair housing laws affecting the development

of affordable housing revolve around a few

essential principles:

Housing that serves people who are

members of protected classes (minority

populations) cannot be put through

extra steps or be required to pay
extra fees or meet criteria that are not

required of housing that serves the

majority population (everyone else). The

"minority population" can be defined in

terms of one or more of the seven federal

protected classes or Oregon's protected
classes. Thus, it would be illegal for a

jurisdiction to require developers of

multifamily affordable housing to meet

with neighbors if it did not require

the same of all multifamily housing

developers. (Unequal Treatment)

• It is illegal to have laws that seem

neutral on the surface but result a

disproportionate cost or delay for

housing that serves minority populations.

(Disparate Impact)

• Outright discrimination is also illegal,

such as prohibiting the development of

affordable housing in the jurisdiction.

It is important to remember that people

in protected classes must follow rules

and regulations that govern the rest of

the population. People cannot use fair

housing as an excuse for breaking the law.

Furthermore, fair housing does not protect

people who pose a direct threat to people
or property. The law requires that such

determinations be based on objective proof

of a threat by specific individuals and not

generalizations about a population.

HOUSING FOR PEOPLE WITH
DISABILITIES
Another category of housing that often

triggers initial opposition is housing that

serves people with disabilities or special

needs housing. The reaction is often based

on fear of people who seem "different." The

first step is to recognize the potential for

having a fear-based reaction and make the

conscious choice to move beyond it to facts,

understanding, and community.

Since the 1960s, there has been a cultural

change in the US involving the movement

away from placing people with disabilities,

or those recovering from alcohol and drug

addictions, into large institutions. As a

result, an increasing proportion of people

with a wide range of disabilities—physical,

mental health, developmental—live in

communities, either in traditional housing or

in staffed homes with services, depending

on the individual.

There are many different types and names

for specialized housing with services for

people with disabilities, including supportive

14 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



W'?W'5%%W'»5%??KK-Si'?5!»fr%&%W»WWK-%S»S%'%?%!%{^^

MYTH

Affordable housing always lowers property values in the
surrounding neighborhood. '<^,

FACT

How affordable housing affects nearby properties is complicated.
In 2005, the Journal of Planning Literature published an
authoritative review of seventeen academic studies that occurred

over 40 years regarding the impact of subsidized housing on
neighborhood property values. The author concluded:

• Housing that was acquired and rehabilitated as affordable
housing had a positive effect on nearby property values.

• Subsidized housing had no effect on nearby property values
when it was sited in healthy and vibrant neighborhoods, when
it was dispersed, and when it had responsive, responsible
management. Conversely, negative effects on property
values were more likely to occur when affordable housing was
clustered and located in declining neighborhoods.

• When negative effects do occur, they were relatively small,
especially compared to other factors that affected property
values.

Source: Nguyen, N.T. (2005). Does affordable housing detrimentslly affect property values? A review of the literature.
Journal of Planning Liter3ture. 20:E. DOUO.m7/OSaW220S271%9

•••
•••

••

^
ft-»^-&-»0

^IA. UtDE F , 15



•i'/////ywy^ffwr/,vw^wv^/^^v/w/y^/y^w.

housing, group homes and community
residential facilities. Examples include:

• Group homes for persons recovering from

alcohol or drug addiction

• Residential treatment facilities for persons

with a mental illness

• Adult foster homes for older adults

needing assistance with activities of daily

living

• Group homes for adults or children with

developmental disabilities

In addition to these clear-cut examples, there

are a variety of other living arrangements

which may not, on the surface, appear to

house people with disabilities, but which

do so in fact. One example is transitional

housing for formerly homeless individuals.

While homelessness is not in and of

itself considered to be a disability, many

individuals who are homeless may have one

or more disabilities. Others may be members

of a protected class in Oregon by virtue of

being a survivor of domestic violence. A

disproportionate share of homeless youth are

gay, bisexual, lesbian, transsexual or queer,

and sexual orientation and gender identity

are protected classes in Oregon. Thus, on a

case-by-case basis, fair housing protections

may extend to a wide variety of congregate

living situations.

FAIR HOUSING PROTECTIONS FOR
THE DEVELOPMENT OF HOUSING
FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES
In addition to the protections for affordable

housing described above, there are several

additional principles that underlie fair

housing as it applies to the development of

housing for people with disabilities, including:

• REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION:

As discussed in Chapter 1, the Fair

Housing Act requires local governments

to make minor modifications to local

regulations (including zoning and land

use regulations) if so requested, if doing

so affords equal housing opportunity to

people with disabilities. For example, a

developer might request an exception to

a required setback that would enable a

wheelchair ramp with the proper slope to

be installed.

• NO QUOTAS: The Department of Justice

has advised local jurisdictions that setting

quotas on the number or share of housing

units that serve people with disabilities

within a geographic area is a fair housing

violation. The only time that jurisdictions

may consider issues related to the

concentration of people with disabilities

within an area is when such concentration

may work to the disadvantage of people

with disabilities.

LJ

16 / Fair Housing Council of Oregon



•^;i%W!!W'i>?%?S<???%»^^%f'f!f;%i^i'f??a?!9^^ y//wy//^//////y/^

MYTH

Affordable housing is ugly and will quickly become an eyesore.

FACT

Perceptions about the design and construction of affordable
housing project are often based on memories of old public
housing projects, some of which were, indeed, built cheaply
(by Congressional mandate) and were unattractive. Much
has changed since then; in Oregon, the emphasis has been
on building sturdy, attractive and highly functional housing
for many years now. Nonprofsts and public agencies that
build affordable housing are in it for the long haul; it makes
sense for them to use durable materials and maintain the
properties, as they are long-term owners and not in this
business to make money and sell the property to a new owner.
Affordable housing developments that are well built, blend
into the neighborhood and well maintained can be among a
neighborhood's assets.

• CONFIDENTIALITY: Just like everyone
else, people with disabilities have a right

to privacy with respect to their medical

information. Housing providers cannot

disclose the nature of the disability that
individuals have.

OREGON STATE LAW
AND RESIDENTIAL HOMES
AND FACILITIES
While each jurisdiction has its own zoning

code and other rules that govern the

location and development of housing for

people with disabilities, Oregon also has

adopted laws on this subject with which

jurisdictions must comply. These state laws

provide specific protections but are not as

broad as federal fair housing law. Thus, it is

necessary, but not sufficient, that local codes

comply with Oregon law.

Specifically, Oregon law requires that

jurisdictions make licensed residential

homes a permitted use in all residential

zones and also in any commercial zone

that allows single-family dwellings (ORS

197. 660). A permitted use is a one that is

allowed outright in a particular zone and

does not require additional review to see if it

meets extra criteria. A classic example of a

permitted use is a single-family home in an

area zoned for single-family residences.

fl^iII".'^ COMMON GROUNDS GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS /17



/>Kwmwmw«

A licensed residential home is defined as a

home that is licensed by the state and serves

no more than five individuals with mental

health disabilities or addictions (residential

treatment homes) or developmental

disabilities (residential training homes). It

also includes adult foster homes that serve

five or fewer adults needing residential care

in a homelike environment (ORS 443. 400).

The licensing agencies are the Oregon

Health Authority, the Oregon Department of

Human Services and the Oregon Department

of Human Services or Health Authority for

treatment homes, training homes and foster

homes, respectively.

Fair housing laws provide even greater

protections than the state protections for
residential homes. Many different types of

homes with disabled persons are not and do

not need to be licensed. Many people that

fall under the Fair Housing Act's definition

of "disabled" have a high degree of self-

care, and, while they may not need the level

of service provided in a licensed home or

facility, they may find group living situations

beneficial. Permitting and zoning restrictions

that directly target these unlicensed group

homes or group living situations are a

violation of the Fair Housing Act.

Thus in residential zones, a group home that

serves five or fewer disabled individuals

must be treated in the same way that a

single-family home that serves five or fewer

unrelated individuals would be treated.

Jurisdictions may not require additional

review, hearings or meetings or impose

additional standards on the group home.

Oregon state law also requires jurisdictions

to make licensed residential facilities—

facilities licensed to serve six or more

individuals with physical, mental health or

developmental disabilities (defined in ORS

443.400)—a permitted use in any zone

where multifamily housing is a permitted

use. They must also be either a permitted or

conditional use in zones where multifamily

housing is a conditional use (ORS 197. 667).

KEY CONCEPTS
In general, people who need subsidized

housing are also people whose access

to housing choice is protected under fair

housing law.

• There are many myths surrounding

affordable or subsidized housing and the

people who reside there.

• Affordable housing does not

automatically lower property values

on the properties in the surrounding

neighborhoods; property values

depend on the current health of the

neighborhood and a host of other

factors.

• Affordable housing is more often than

not attractive and well maintained.

• An increase in the number of low income

people into a neighborhood does not

necessarily translate into an increase in

crime.

18 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



MYTH

An increase in the number of people
who have lower incomes means
more crime.

FACT

That's not what the research says. In
Memphis Murder Mystery Revisited:
Do Housing Voucher Households
Cause Crime? researchers at New

York University's Furman Center
tracked voucher holders and their

impact on neighborhood crime.
Using neighborhood-level data
for 10 cities across the nation, the
authors, "refute the notion that

rising numbers of voucher holders
contribute to increasing rates of
neighborhood crime... They also
found no association between

the arrival of voucher holders in a

neighborhood and the incidence of
crime one year later."

Source: National Low Income Housing Coalition, http://nlihc. org/article/
studies-examine-effects-affordable-housing-crime-pattems

In Oregon, in residential zones, group homes

that serve five or fewer disabled individuals

must be treated in the same way that a

single-family dwelling is treated.

In Oregon, jurisdictions are required to make

licensed residential facilities serving six or

more individuals with disabilities a permitted

used in any zone where multifamity

dwellings are a permitted use.

COMMON OnOUNDs GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS /19



When conflicts arise about land

use issues in neighborhoods, public
officials—elected officials, planning
commission members, planners,
public administrators and other
staff—often find themselves in the
middle, acting informally as arbiters
or more formally as decision-makers.
On one hand, they are called to
understand the neighbors' wishes
to manage their surroundings; on
the other hand, they are called to
respect and uphold the rights of
those seeking to provide housing for
some of the community's hardest to
house residents. In this endeavor,

public officials must be guided not
only by their own judgment, but also
by laws and professional standards
of conduct associated with their
professions. One area of law with
which public officials need to be
familiar is fair housing. This chapter
addresses how fair housing laws
come into play in neighborhood
disputes.1

As the introductory chapter indicates, it is

illegal to deny access to housing to people

because of their protected class status,

regardless of whether that status arises
from federal, state2 or local law. More

proactively, fair housing is about ensuring

that people have access to the full array of
housing's benefits (including resource- and

opportunity-rich neighborhoods) regardless

of personal characteristics related to
protected classes.

While these basic ideas may seem

straightforward, the difficulty arises in

applying them to real situations in the

community. So many decisions involve

judgment calls about what constitutes a

reasonable request and what constitutes an

effort to make it difficult, if not impossible, to

develop a new project serving people whom

neighbors view as being somehow different

from themselves. When in doubt, ask for

help. The Fair Housing Council of Oregon

welcomes your inquiries. We would much

rather help you avoid missteps than seek
remedial action in response to a complaint

from an aggrieved party.

FAIR HOUSING COUNCIL OF OREGON

1 (800) 424-3247

www.fhco.org

' This chapter is especially indebted to the information provided by Tracey
McCartney, Tennessee Fair Housing Council, in her guide Navigating NIMBY:
A Public Official's Guide to Neighborhood Living for People with Disabilities,
Summer 2003. www.tennfairhousing.org/resources

z The most recent change to Oregon's protected classes has the effect of
making it illegal to discriminate against someone because the source
of their rent is derived from a Housing Choice (Section 8)Voucher,
effective July 1, 2014.

I

I II
1111
II I

20 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon ^



TIP

If your jurisdiction uses a land use review committee,
look closely at who serves on the committee.
Less informed citizen members, although well
intentioned, can run afoul of fair housing provisions
and create a potential liability for the jurisdiction.

THE ROLES OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS
As a public official, you play an important

leadership role in the community. If you

are an elected or appointed public official,

you make important decisions that affect

the welfare of both individuals in your

community and your community as a whole.

You also have access to "the bully pulpit" as

a means of affecting community sentiment

and expressing new ideas. If you are an

elected leader, constituents may come to

you for help or leverage in addressing their

concerns.

If you are staff, you play an important role

in upholding, interpreting and explaining

laws and rules that have been adopted for

the benefit of the community overall. You

are on the front line—you are the ones most

likely to first encounter the angry response

of neighbors who discover a new project

proposed for their neighborhood or who are

upset with the behavior of other neighbors.

Your job is to walk the line between

responding to legitimate community

concerns about safety and neighborhood

conditions on one hand and protecting the

rights of all residents to have fair access to

housing opportunities in communities of

their choice on the other. Here are some

suggestions on how to find that balance:

1. Listen to what neighbors have to say.

Community members have the right,

under First Amendment free speech

protections, to express their opposition to

projects on any basis (as long as it does

not constitute illegal intimidation).

2. Never make land use or other decisions

based upon discriminatory statements

made by community members. The

courts have repeatedly found such

decisions to be in violation of fair housing

laws. Taking such action may result in

costly legal fees, fines and damages

charged to your jurisdiction.

3. Be aware of, and nip in the bud, efforts

to delay a project through requests

from neighbors for repeated meetings

to rehash topics already discussed and

addressed. At public meetings, balance

the need to permit free speech with

the right to be free from intimidation.

Mentally place yourself in the audience,

as a potential resident of the proposed

housing development, as a way to monitor

fl^l^ COMMON GROUND: GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 21



if and when the testimony strays into

intimidation. Efforts to delay a project can

lead to extra costs for the developer and

threaten its viability. Stalling tactics based

on an illegal objective, lacking a reasonable

basis in law or fact or having an improper

motive are violations of the Fair Housing

Act W. S. v. Wagner, 940F, Supp 972 (N. D.

Texas 1996)).

4. Be aware of efforts to delay or overburden

a project through raising facially "neutral"

issues (such as parking concerns) which

have little basis in fact. Over the years,

it has become less socially acceptable

to raise concerns about a project based

on the race, ethnicity, national origin or

disability status of the likely residents.

Thus, neighbors are likely to find other

ways to raise concerns about a project.

When you hear concerns about things

like parking, sight lines and setbacks, ask

yourself whether such objections would be

raised if the project were to be occupied

by a different population. Sometimes such

objections are raised to stall the project

and drive up the cost of development.

5. If a public hearing is part of a quasi-

judicial proceeding, remind speakers
that a decision can be made solely on

the basis of whether a particular project

conforms to pre-established criteria. If

speakers stray into other areas, you can
remind them that testimony not related to

those criteria cannot be considered by the

decision-makers.

6. Take appropriate action to address

legitimate complaints that the residents

of any home or apartment building,

including subsidized or special-needs

housing, are engaging in conduct

that is dangerous or a nuisance. Fair

housing does not give anyone free rein

to disregard the law. Disturbances of

the peace, violent behavior, trespassing
and other offenses should be addressed.

The complaints must be addressed on

the basis of the behavior of specific

individuals, and not on stereotypes about

how "those people" behave.

7. If your jurisdiction receives federal

housing funds, be aware of your

responsibility to affirmatively further

fair housing. If you are not familiar with

it already, find out about your Analysis

of Impediments to Housing Choice and

the actions that your community has

proposed to promote access to housing

opportunities for everyone.

<»0

22 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



^
COMMON FAIR HOUSING MISTAKES
AND HOW TO AVOID THEM

In an effort to be responsive to constituents

or to reduce community conflict, it is all

too easy to stray into practices which

may, in fact, have a discriminatory effect

on protected classes or otherwise violate

fair housing laws. This section describes

common mistakes and the steps that public

officials can take to avoid or rectify them.

Requiring that affordable/subsidized

housing projects undergo additional

approval steps, hearings, meetings with

neighbors or other processes not required

for similar multi-unit housing developments.

Public officials and staff may not impose

extra steps or meetings, and you may not

condition your approval upon the developer

taking any extra steps. For example, you

may not require an affordable housing

developer to meet with the neighborhood

association if you do not require the same of

developers of for-profit housing projects.

Requiring affordable/subsidized housing

projects to have extra screening, setbacks

or other design modifications you do not

require of for-profit housing projects.

For example, if a neighbor were to complain

about having "those people" move in, you

may not require the affordable housing

project to build a fence, plant screening

shrubbery or provide a bigger setback if

those same requirements would not impose

upon a project with a similar form in the

same zone.

AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING
FAIR HOUSING

All jurisdictions that receive
federal funds of any kind (not
just housing) are required to take
steps to affirmatively further fair
housing. At its most fundamental,
the term affirmatively furthering fair
housing means going beyond not
discriminating to actively promoting
access to homes in resource and

opportunity-rich communities
by those who historically have
had the fewest housing choices,
and to invest in bringing higher
quality services and resources to

neighborhoods that have such
populations and individuals. If
your jurisdiction receives federal
housing funds directly from the
US Department of Housing and
Urban Development, then, in most
cases, you have also adopted an
Analysis of Impediments to Housing
Choice and a corresponding plan
describing actions to address the
identified impediments. In this case,
affirmatively furthering fair housing
mean something specific; it means
implementing those actions and
documenting them and other steps
that your jurisdiction has undertaken
to address the impediments.

COMMON GROUND: GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 23



f-:-X

Placing burdensome public safety

requirements on affordable housing or

housing for people with disabilities.

To quote the law, fair housing does not

provide protection to "an individual whose

tenancy would constitute a direct threat to

the health or safety of other individuals or

whose tenancy would result in substantial

physical damage to the property of

others" (42 U.S. Code § 3604(f)(9)). Thus,
a jurisdiction may impose reasonable

protections to ensure the safety of the

community as a whole. However, the

concerns upon which the protections are

based must be fact-based. The concerns

may not be based on assumptions,

generalizations or stereotypes about a

population as a whole, and the protections

must be reasonable.

The courts have provided guidance on

reasonableness. For example, a court in

Utah found that requiring a group home

for developmentally disabled adults to

have 24-7 supervision and a community

advisory panel to address complaints to

be intentional discrimination. The court

found that the city did not place similar

requirements on other communal living

arrangements and that the requirements

were not justified by actual public safety

concerns (46 F .3d 1491 (10th Cir. 1995)).

Interfering with funding for an affordable or

fair housing project.

Often applicants for funding for affordable

or special needs housing are required

to submit documentation that their

plans conform to local zoning codes.

Withholding or delaying certifications or

other documentation that the developer

needs could be considered discrimination,

especially if the underlying reason for doing

so is itself discriminatory (for example,

because of objections to the project by

neighbors).

Again, a court case provides a relevant

example. In Fu v. City of Clyde Hill,

an operator of a home for adults with

disabilities requested documentation from

the city certifying that that her home would

not be in violation of the local zoning

ordinance. Her bank loan was denied

because the city would not provide that
documentation. The court held that the

town's failure to provide the letter was a

violation of fair housing laws (FH-FL Rptr.

16.195( W. D.Wash. March 7, 1997)).

Treating group homes in a neighborhood

zoned for single dwelling units differently

from any other housing for unrelated

people living together in a single unit.

The remedy here is straightforward: do not

impose any use restrictions, notice criteria,

design requirements or siting criteria on

group homes that you do not apply to

other group living situations, such as a

group of unrelated people renting a house

together or a homeowner who provides

or rents space to housemates. If there are

24 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



TIP

Neighbors need a place to air their grievances; however,
monthly meetings on the same subject with the same
opposition only creates hardship for the affordable
housing provider. Be clear on what is not negotiable.

cortflicts between neighbors, and one of the

neighbors happens to be a group home, you

may refer thenn to a Community Dispute

Resolution Center, just as you might offer
this referral to other neighbors who have

conflicts. You may not, however, make an

approval contingent upon a successful

resolution of a conflict involving a group

home if you do not also follow this approach

with other neighbors.

Imposing dispersion or spacing

requirements for housing for people with
disabilities.

In an effort to prevent the concentration

of special needs housing for people with

disabilities in a particular neighborhood,

some cities may consider imposing

dispersion requirements that require a

designated amount of space between such

housing. Such spacing requirements have

been found to be in violation of the Fair

Housing Act because they limit housing

choice for people with disabilities. (See, for

example, Lark/'n v. State of Michigan, 89 F.3d

285 (6th Cir. 1996)).

A fundamental principle of the Fair

Housing Act's protections is that people
with disabilities should be able to live in

an integrated residential setting of their

choice. The only way that dispersion

requirements have been found to be

acceptable by the courts is if they result in
an environment beneficial for the disabled

residents by avoiding segregation and

clustering (. Familystyle of St. Paul v. City of

St. Paul, Minnesota, 923 F.2nd 91 (8th Cir.

1991)). However, in most cases, dispersion

requirements have been found to be in

violation of the Fair Housing Act and have

been struck down by the courts.

00 0«»

1^11^ COMMON GROUND; GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 25



PROVIDING REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATIONS FOR PEOPLE
WITH DISABILITIES
To ensure that people with disabilities

have access to a full range of housing

opportunities, fair housing law enables

them or their representatives to ask for a

reasonable accommodation—a departure

from a general rule or practice—to adapt or
develop housing that is accessible.

According to the federal Department of

Justice, whether or not a request for an

accommodation based on disability is

reasonable depends on the answers to two

questions:

• Does the request impose an undue

burden or expense on the local

government?

• Does the proposed use create a

fundamental alteration in the zoning

scheme [or other regulation]? For

example, does it allow a fundamentally

different kind of use, such as a large

skilled nursing facility in a single family

neighborhood?

If the answer to either question is "yes,"

then the requested accommodation may

be considered unreasonable. This is a very

complex and nuanced topic (for example,
how does one determine whether a burden

or expense is "undue?") with a substantial

amount of case law informing it.

I

FAIR HOUSING LAND USE
AND ZONING CHECKLIST
FOR OREGON

The Fair Housing Council of Oregon
has developed a checklist for local
jurisdictions to use in reviewing their
land use and subdivision ordinances

and related practices. Called
Examining Local Land Use with a Fair
Housing Lens, the checklist helps
jurisdictions both identify problem
areas and add new best practices. It
is a "living tool" in that it is updated
as the Fair Housing Council assists
local jurisdictions with code-related
issues and discovers additional

issues and best practices. The most
recent version of the checklist can be

found on the Fair Housing Council of
Oregon's website:

www.fhco. org/pdfs/AFFHfhco1. pdf

26 / Fair Housing Council of Oregon



^

Local jurisdictions are encouraged by the

Department of Justice to specify, provide

and publicize the availability of mechanisms

for requesting a reasonable accommodation.

These processes may not impose significant

costs or delays. If your jurisdiction does not

specify a mechanism, applicants for people

with disabilities can still request a reasonable

accommodation. Inordinate delay or failure

to respond to such a request is a fair housing
violation.

COMMUNITY DISPUTE
RESOLUTION PROGRAMS
Some communities may find it helpful to

engage the services of a Community Dispute

Resolution Program to help work through

concerns with respect to a new or existing

housing project. These community-based

organizations, some of which are affiliated

with city government, have trained staff and

volunteers who provide a neutral forum and

a facilitated process for addressing conflict.

Community dispute resolution is a way to

raise difficult issues in a non-confrontational

way and work toward finding a solution that

all parties can accept.

COMNUNITY-BASED DISPUTE
RESOLUTION CENTERS
IN OREGON

In Oregon, 22 of the state's 36 counties
are served by one or more community-
based dispute resolution centers that
provide a neutral forum for resolving
conflict. A current list of centers can

be found through Oregon Office for
Community Dispute Resolution at the
University Of Oregon School Of Law:

www.osbar. org/_docs/public/cable/commdispute. pdf

fl^l1^.̂  COMMON CTtOUND! GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 27



One of the potential outcomes of a

community dispute resolution process is a

voluntary Good Neighbor Agreement, which

lays out the rules each party agrees to follow
to avoid conflict and be good neighbors, as

well as steps to take if problems do arise.

№\
RESOURCES ABOUT REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATIONS

Joint Statement of the Departments

of Justice and of Housing and Urban
Development on Group Homes, Land
Use, and the Fair Housing Act

Joint Statement of the Department of
Housing and Urban Development and
the Department of Justice—Reasonable
Accommodations under the Fair

Housing Act, May 17, 2004.

www.justice. gov/crt/about/hce/abouLguidance. php

KEY CONCEPTS
• Public officials, including elected officials

and Planning Commission members as

well as staff, often finds themselves in the

middle of conflict over the development of

affordable/subsidized housing or special

needs housing.

• Be aware of common fair housing

mistakes, especially those that place

burdensome requirements on housing for

people with special needs.

* Engage the services of a Community

Dispute resolution program if it exists in

your community.

• It is important to maintain a balance by

doing the following:

• Listen to what the neighbors have to

say;

• Never make land use decisions on

discriminatory statements made by

community members;

• Be aware of and stop any efforts to

delay a project through neighborhood

requests for reoeated meetings to

discuss the same topics over and over

again;

At.

[-1



• Be aware of effort to delay a project

through raising facially neutral issues

such as parking or traffic;

• If a public hearing is part of a quasi-

judicial proceeding, remind speakers

that a decision can be made solely on

the basis that the project conforms to

established criteria;

• Take appropriate action to address

legitimate complaints of neighbors;
and,

• Be aware of your responsibility to

affirmatively further fair housing if

your jurisdiction receives federal

funding.

CONCLUSION: FROMNIMBYTO
ACCESS TO OPPORTUNITY
In the decades since the passage of the

Fair hlousing Act, the emphasis has begun

to change from a focus on the prevention

and elimination of discriminatory practices

(eliminating a negative) to proactively

supporting access to opportunity through

enabling a wider variety of housing and

neighborhood choices for those who

historically and economically have had the

fewest choices (pursuing a positive).

Housing is a platform—a location in a

particular place and a safe haven—for

pursuing life's opportunities. Housing

situates people in a particular place, with a

particular set of nearby assets like schools,

in a particular environment (healthy and

safe, unhealthy and unsafe or somewhere in

between), and among a particular group of

people. Denying people the opportunity to

live where they can thrive based on their race,

color, religion, national origin, sex, disability,

or family status perpetuates cycles of poverty

and despair and represents both a huge loss

of human potential and a crime.

At first, integration may not be easy or
comfortable for those on the front lines—

not for the neighbors who may be reluctant

to experience change, nor for the new

people moving in. As public officials, you

have the opportunity to promote patience,

dialogue and understanding. You also have

the responsibility of upholding the law. We

encourage you to use the resources at your

disposal, including our office, to help promote

fair access to opportunity through housing in

your community.

^ «



The information available online

on fair housing and inclusive
communities continues to expand.
Entering the search terms "Fair
Housing" and "NIMBY" (which
stands for Not in My Back Yard, a
term commonly used to describe
neighborhood opposition to a
project being located in that
neighborhood) into a web browser
will yield resources which can be
scanned to determine which ones

are from reliable sources, such as
state fair housing agencies, national
nonprofits and academic sources.

In this dynamic information
environment, a comprehensive list of
resources would soon be out of date.

Thus, the information in this chapter
represents an annotated selection of
key resources, including ones used in
the development of this guide. While
all links are current as of publication
of this guide in July 2014, they, too,
may change over time.

ESSENTIAL RESOURCES FROM
THE DEPARTMENTS OF HOUSING
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT AND
JUSTICE

Fair Housing Act, As Amended:

www.justice.gov/crt/about/hce/title8. php

List of Fair Housing Laws from HUD's Office

of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity:

http://portal. hud. gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_offices/

fair_housing_equal_opp/FHLaws

Department of Justice Fair Housing Policy
Statements and Guidance:

www.justice.gov/crt/about/hce/abouLguidance.php

Department of Justice Overview of Fair

Housing Act and Enforcement Measures:

www.Justice. gov/crt/about/hce/housing_coverage. php

30 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



ORE'GON-SPECIFIC MATERIALS GENERAL GUIDES

City of Portland, Office of Neighborhood

Involvement (2012).

Community Residential Siting Resources.

www.portlandoregon.gov/oni/32417

Before it was discontinued in 2012, the

Community Residential Siting Program

provided guidance to neighbors and

housing providers on siting affordable

housing and housing for difficult-to-house

populations in Portland and Multnomah

County. Four practical resources are
still available on the website above:

information for neighbors, recommended

public involvement guidelines, community

involvement strategies, and site selection

guidelines for post-incarceration facilities.

Some of the information references

Portland zoning code and may not be

applicable elsewhere, but much of the

information is relevant throughout the

state.

Pratt. Sara and Alien, Michael. (2004).

Addressing Community Opposition to

Affordable Housing Development: A

Fair Housing Toolkit. Housing Alliance of

Pennsylvania.

www.housingalliancepa. org/resources/111

At 80 pages, a very thorough guide

to understanding and responding to

neighborhood concerns about affordable

housing. This guide addresses the

following topics: zoning and land use, free

speech, community information campaigns

and government opposition. The sidebars

contain relevant examples, information

about best practices, practice-related hints,

and detailed information about topics

mentioned in the text. The list of resources

(10 pages) includes websites, articles and

books, and cases. This is a good resource

to have bookmarked on your computer.

Fair Housing Council of Oregon (2014).

Examining Local Land Use With a Fair

Housing Lens: An Evaluation Tool for

Planners, Policy Makers and Other

Practitioners.

www.fhco.org/pdfs/AFFHfhco1.pdf

A checklist for reviewing zoning codes and

current planning practices based on both

fair housing laws and Oregon state land use

laws and administrative rules.

u1^ COMMON GROUND: GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 31



^

RESOURCES FOR NEIGHBORS RESOURCES FOR PUBLIC OFFICIALS

Tennessee Fair Housing Council. (2003).

Good Neighbors, Healthy Communities.

www.tennfairhousing. org/resources

A guide about housing for people with

disabilities written for neighborhood

residents. Using research findings, it

addresses common misconceptions about

the impact of group homes and other

housing for people with disabilities on

neighbors and neighborhoods. It also

includes chapters on relevant laws, the

rights of neighbors who live near housing

for people with disabilities and frequently

asked questions.

NcCartney, Tracey. (2003). Navigating

NIMBY: A Public Official's Guide to

Neighborhood Living for People with

Disabilities. Tennessee Fair Housing Council.

www.tennfairhousing.org/resources

One of the few guides available specifically

for elected officials. It includes a clear,

logical presentation of the laws and

significant cases, myths and truths about

people with disabilities and a thoughtful

chapter on the role of public officials.

Voelker. Robert, (n. d, ). Utilizing the Fair

Housing Act to Counteract NIMBY.

Shelterforce Online. National Housing

Institute.

www.nhi.org/online/issues/fairhousingmonth.htmlftResources

A brief but very useful article that

describes the kinds of actions by local

governments and local officials that courts
have found to be in violation of the Fair

hlousing Act. Includes a list of resources.

32 \ Fair Housing Council of Oregon



RESOURCES FOR HOUSING
PROVIDERS

Connelly, Joy. (2005). Yes, in My Back Yard:

A Guide for Ontario's Supportive Housing

Providers. HomeComing Community Choice

Coalition.

www.homecomingcoalition.com

While the laws governing housing choice

are different in the US and Canada, the

underlying human dynamics are similar. This

guide provides step-by-step suggestions for

housing developers. Of particular interest

are the fifteen predictable objections and
how to deal with them.

Corporation for Supportive Housing. (2006).

Thinking Beyond NIMBY: Building Community

Support for Supportive Housing.

www.csh.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/07/BeyondNIMBYpdf. pdf

A guide for providers of supportive

housing—affordable housing with services

for people who face complex challenges

with daily living. Includes a variety of

strategies for overcoming community fears,

including ideas for ways to link to outside

resources. Concludes with a case study and

a list of additional publications.

Housing Assistance Council. (2005). Telling

Our Story: Marketing Affordable Housing.

Rural Voices (10) 1.
www.ruralhome. org/storage/documents/voicesspring2005. pdf

The Spring 2005 edition of Rural Voices,

the publication of the Housing Assistance

Council, includes ten articles about how

to advocate for affordable housing within
communities, with funders and with local

residents in rural areas.

John Jay College of Criminal Justice. (2009).

In Our Backyard: Overcoming Community

Resistance to Reentry Housing.

www.jjay.cuny.edu/TOOL_KITJ-NIMBY_FINAL.pdf

This guide introduces the magnitude of

the challenge of finding housing for people

released from jails and prisons. The principal

focus is a detailed case study of The Castle,

a reentry project undertaken by the Fortune

Society in New York City, and the more

broadly applicable best practices learned

from it. The publication also includes a list of

resources related to on reentry housing and

related topics.

1̂^ COMMON GROUND: GUIDE FOR ELECTED OFFICIALS / 33



I ^

RESOURCES FOR HOUSING
PROVIDERS CONTINUED

OneCPD Resource Exchange (n.d. ). N I M BY

Risk Assessment and Decision Tree Tool

(online resource).

https://onecpd.info/resources/nimbyassessment

An online resource for developers of

housing, with or without supportive

services, targeted to homeless individuals.

The user completes an online questionnaire

about current concerns, and the tool leads

to targeted case studies that address the

identified issues.

Tennessee Fair Housing Council. (2003). A

Place to Call Home: Addressing Opposition

to Homes for People with Disabilities in

Tennessee Neighborhoods.

www.tennfairhousing.org/resources

A guide for providers of housing for

people with disabilities. One of the best

features of this guide is a thorough

discussion of the comparative advantages

and disadvantages of high profile and

low profile approaches to siting. Other

chapters present an overview of relevant

laws, myths and truths (backed by research

findings) and other issues related to siting,

including a discussion of "fair share."



NOTES

i



'1

0»<

FAIR
HOUSING
COUNCIL
OF OREGON

www.fhco. org
(503)223-8197


	SKM_C654e21072811400
	Signed PC Minutes 6-7-2021
	Local Land Use with Fair Housing Lens
	Elected Officials Inclusinve Communities Toolkit

